
CITY OF CEDARBURG 
MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL 

JULY 30, 2018 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
A meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, will be held on 
Monday, July 30, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, 
WI, in the second floor Council Chambers.  
            

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  - Mayor Mike O’Keefe 
 

2. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
4.        ROLL CALL:  Present – 

 
 
  

Common Council – Mayor Mike O’Keefe, Council 
Members Dan von Bargen, Jack Arnett, Kristin Burkart 
Rick Verhaalen, Garan Chivinski, Patricia Thome, and 
Rod Galbraith 
 

5. STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES* - July 9, 2018 
 
7. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS** Comments from citizens on a 

listed agenda item will be taken when the item is addressed by the Council.  At this time 
individuals can speak on any topic not on the agenda for up to 5 minutes, time 
extensions at the discretion of the Mayor.  No action can be taken on items not listed 
except as a possible referral to committees, individuals or a future Council agenda item. 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
* Consider Ordinance No. 2018-10 rezoning a .182 acre parcel and a .337 acre parcel 

located along the north side of Mill Street between Washington Avenue and Hanover 
Avenue from B-3/HPD Central Business District/Historic Preservation District to B-
3/HPD/PUD Central Business District/Planned Unit Development District; and action 
thereon (Plan Comm. 07/02/18) 

 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

 
* A. Consider referral of proposed annexation of an approximately one acre parcel of 

land at 7404 Western Avenue in the Town of Cedarburg to the Plan Commission; 
and action thereon 

 
* B. Consider Resolution No. 2018-20 requesting a speed limit reduction on 

Sheboygan Road South of Highway 60; and action thereon (Public Works & 
Sewerage Comm. 06/14/18) 

 
* C. Update on the City’s Emerald Ash Borer (EAB) program; and direction thereon 
 

Page 1 of 52



* D. Consider payment of bills dated July 19, 2018, transfers for the period 06/28/18 
through 07/24/18; and payroll for the period 06/17/18 through 07/14/18; and 
action thereon 

 
*** E. Consider License Applications; and action thereon 
    

 1. Consider approval of new Operator License applications for the period 
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 for:   

   

Mark A. Adrian Michael E. Hester Edward J. Simpson 

Tamara J. Behling Howard E. Hockstad Becky A. Steliga 

Kathleen S. Benson Ryan S. Kais Michael T. Thorison 

Mark S. Brock David Kosy Jennifer L. Wilhelm 

Lys M. Buck Daryl M. Kranich  

Brady S. Curtis Dawn M. Priddy  

 
 2. Consider approval of renewal Operator License applications for the period 

July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 for:   
   

Catherine Davis Andrew J. Kirk Robert Nash 

Ron R. Ernst Paige M. Kleinhans Andrea J. Patnode 

Julie B. Gottfried Keri L. Klemann Cynthia M. Petted 

Lori A. Haeuser Christine A. Krause Robert J. Roden 

LeRoy C. Haeuser Adam J. Leiphart Richard J. Roden 

Nicholas S. Heebsh Neal C. Maciejewski Jeannette M. Schupp 

Gerald J. Henning Kari S. Midtbo Schwartz Warren Seifert 

Mark Hilgendorf Judith A. Murphy Joseph P. Willbrandt 

 
10.       REPORTS OF CITY OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 
* A. Administrator’s Report 
 
11. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
** A. Comments and suggestions from citizens 
 B. Comments and announcements by Council Members  

C. Mayor’s Report  
 1. Proclamation – Mr. Miller Day, July 23, 2018 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT – CLOSED SESSION 
 

It is anticipated the Common Council will adjourn to closed session pursuant to: 
 

 State Statutes 19.85 (1)(g) to confer with legal counsel who is rendering oral or 
written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the Council with respect to 
litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved, more specifically, to: 

o Discuss Ozaukee County Case Number 2017CV000334 Anita Clark et al 
vs. City of Cedarburg et al.   

 

 State Statutes 19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchasing of public 
properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public 

Page 2 of 52



business whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session, 
more specifically, to: 
o Consider an amendment to an option to purchase a City-owned property 

at N144 W5888 Pioneer Road; 
o Consider the possible purchase of a parcel of land that is a portion of N69 

W5269 Columbia Road for construction of a sanitary sewer pump station. 
 

 Approval of July 9, 2018 closed session minutes.    
 
13. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 
14. Consider purchase of a parcel of land that is a portion of N69 W5269 Columbia Road 

for construction of a sanitary sewer pump station; and action thereon 
 
15. Consider amendment to an option to purchase a City-owned property at N144 W5888 

Pioneer Road; and action thereon 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Individual members of various boards, committees, or commissions may attend the above meeting.  It 
is possible that such attendance may constitute a meeting of a City board,  committee or commission 
pursuant to State ex. rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, 173 Wis. 2d 553, 494 NW 2d 408 (1993).  
This notice does not authorize attendance at either the above meeting or the Badke Meeting, but is 
given solely to comply with the notice requirements of the open meeting law. 
 
 
 
 
* Information attached for Council; available through City Clerk’s Office.   
** Citizen comments should be primarily one-way, from citizen to the Council.  Each citizen who wishes to 

speak   shall be accorded one opportunity at the beginning of the meeting and one opportunity at the end 
of the meeting.  Comments should be kept brief.  If the comment expressed concerns a matter of public 
policy, response from the Council will be limited to seeking information or acknowledging that the citizen 
has been understood.  It is out of order for anyone to debate with a citizen addressing the Council or for 
the Council to take action on a matter of public policy.  The Council may direct that the concern be placed 
on a future agenda.  Citizens will be asked to state their name and address for the record and to speak 
from the lectern for the purposes of recording their comments. 

*** Information available through the Clerk’s Office. 
 

UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, EFFORTS WILL BE MADE TO 
ACCOMMODATE THE NEEDS OF INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES. 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT (262) 375-7606 

E-MAIL:  cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us 
 
 
07/26/18 ckm  
 
 

Page 3 of 52

mailto:cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us


 
  CITY OF CEDARBURG     CC20180709-1 
                                                             COMMON COUNCIL UNAPPROVED 
                                                                     July 9, 2018 
        
A regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, was held on 
Monday, July 9, 2018, at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, second floor, Council 
Chambers.  Mayor O’Keefe called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Roll Call: Present -  Common Council – Mayor Michael O’Keefe, Council Members Dan 

von Bargen, Jack Arnett, Kristin Burkart, Rick Verhaalen, Garan 
Chivinski, Patricia Thome, Rod Galbraith 

                           
                    Also Present - City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, City Attorney Michael 

Herbrand, Deputy City Clerk Amy Kletzien, City Clerk Constance 
McHugh, City Planner Jon Censky, Director of Parks, Recreation & 
Forestry Mikko Hilvo, interested citizens and news media 

 
STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
At Mayor O’Keefe’s request, Deputy City Clerk Kletzien verified that notice of this meeting was 
provided to the public by forwarding the agenda to the City’s official newspaper, the News Graphic, 
to all news media and citizens who requested copies, and by posting in accordance with the 
Wisconsin Open Meetings law.  Citizens present were welcomed and encouraged to provide their 
input during the citizen comment portion of the meeting. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Galbraith, to approve the 
minutes of the June 25, 2018 meeting as presented.  Motion carried without a negative vote. 
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS – None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
ACCEPT AND REFER TO PLAN COMMISSION THE REZONING PETITION FROM 
BELL INVESTMENT PROP., LLC TO REZONE THE PARCEL AT W68 N926-30 
WASHINGTON AVENUE FROM B-2 COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT TO B-2/PUD 
COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT/PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT; 
AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Planner Censky explained that State Statutes require that the Plan Commission shall review all 
proposed changes to the district boundaries or amendments within the corporate limits and shall 
recommend that the petition be granted as requested, modified, or denied.  The recommendation 
shall be made at a Plan Commission meeting subsequent to the Common Council meeting at which 
the petition is first submitted and shall be made in writing to the Common Council. 
 
The petitioner is requesting this rezoning to apply the Plan Unit Development Overlay Zoning 
District to his property for his proposed reconstruction of the existing Bell Orthodontic Solutions 
facility located at W68 N926-30 Washington Avenue.  The PUD overlay zoning is necessary 
because redevelopment of the site is otherwise severely hindered by the building setback 

Page 4 of 52



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180709-2 
July 9, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
requirements of the B-2 Community Business District (i.e. 40 feet).  This site has public road right-
of-way on three sides and the 40 foot setback requirement would preclude the redevelopment plans 
as proposed.  Accordingly, the petitioner requests the Planned Unit Development (PUD) Overlay 
District for the flexibility it provides in applying the basic use district regulations.  He asked the 
Common Council to accept the petition and refer it to the Plan Commission for their review and 
recommendation.  The Plan Commission’s recommendation will then come back to the Common 
Council for a final decision on this project. 
 
In answer to Council Member Arnett’s question, Planner Censky confirmed that it is a statutory 
requirement for the Common Council to initially accept and refer rezoning petitions to the Plan 
Commission.   
 
Council Member Arnett asked if it would be possible to delegate that authority to staff.  Planner 
Censky stated that these requests used to go directly to the Plan Commission; however, a literal 
interpretation of the Code requires the Common Council to accept and refer as the first step.  City 
Attorney Herbrand stated that bringing it to the Common Council may act as a notice to make 
interested parties aware.   
 
City Clerk McHugh explained that the City ran into trouble last year when it was not done for the 
HSI rezoning.  City Attorney Herbrand said that HSI taught us to follow procedure. 
 
Council Member Arnett asked if this procedure could be handled by staff 99% of the time and if 
this would make it easier to do business with the City.   
 
Council Member Thome did not believe that this procedure makes it difficult to do business with 
the City because it is passed forward immediately.  It also puts the request in front of the public and 
this is not a bad thing. 
 
In answer to Council Member Arnett’s question, City Planner Censky stated that it is possible to 
miss a Plan Commission meeting because it needs to go before the Common Council first.  Council 
Member Arnett said that this would delay any decision for a month and would make it more 
difficult to do business in the City. 
 
Council Member Thome is in favor of keeping the process in front of the conversation to make 
interested parties aware.   
 
Planner Censky said that at times applicants do hope to get through the process as soon as possible 
and they do not realize the length of the process.   
 
Mayor O'Keefe requested that the City find out if this step can be eliminated.  
 
Planner Censky explained that this only becomes an issue when dealing with a rezoning that 
requires a public hearing before the Common Council.  When a request is taken by the Plan 
Commission all parties adjacent to the site are notified and when it goes to the Common Council all 
parties within 300 feet are notified. 
 
Council Member Arnett stated that there are a number of layers of notification to the public and he 
would like to try and make the process easier. 

Page 5 of 52



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180709-3 
July 9, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
In answer to Council Member Verhaalen’s question, Planner Censky stated that the petitioner with 
the request did not realize the length required for the process and they are investing substantial 
money and time into the plans upfront so they can get through the process in one step.  They plan to 
submit fully detailed plans to the Plan Commission and then present those same plans to the 
Common Council to get approved in two meetings if possible.  They want to begin construction by 
September. 
 
Council Member Verhaalen was in favor of making the process more efficient, if possible. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Verhaalen, seconded by Council Member Thome, to refer to the 
Plan Commission the rezoning petition from Bell Investment Prop., LLC to rezone the parcel at 
W68 N926-30 Washington Avenue from B-2 Community Business District to B-2/PUD 
Community Business District/Planned Unit Development District.  Motion carried without a 
negative vote.    
 
CONSIDER REQUEST TO REPLACE ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT/ACCOUNT 
CLERK; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes stated that Administrative Assistant/Account Clerk Valenta is 
leaving her employment with the City on July 17.  She asked to replace her with two full-time 
employees.  Currently the position is half-time in the Clerk’s Office and half-time in the Treasurer’s 
Office and is also the Administrative Assistant to the Administrator.   
 
The Accountant II position would be hired to cover most of the accounting aspects of the office.  
The auditors in their report stated the office does not have an accountant to complete the financials.  
This wouldn’t resolve the issue but it would help.  It would also give them the opportunity to have 
someone capable of being the payroll officer’s backup.  Currently no other employee is trained to 
complete the payroll. 
 
The Administrative Assistant position in the Clerk’s Office would provide a wide range of duties, 
including general office duties and customer service, assisting with licensing and elections, 
preparing the City newsletter, providing backup for the website, preparing Council packets, sending 
out Constant Contact notifications, and assisting the City Administrator in preparation of budget 
documents.  It is important to replace this position as soon as possible with the busy election season 
and budget preparation upon us.  Functions in both Departments have become increasingly more 
complex and time consuming over the last several years. 
 
The Clerk’s Office has been short almost two employees since 2011.  City Clerk McHugh stated 
that another person is needed in the office for customer service.  It is very difficult during licensing 
time and elections during absentee voting.  In the month of October, an estimated 800 people will 
visit the Clerk’s Office to request absentee ballots, which is difficult for one or two people to 
handle.   
 
In answer to Council Member Arnett’s question, City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained 
that replacing this vacancy was not discussed at the Personnel Committee because of the short 
notice.  However, succession planning and a backup for payroll were discussed.   
 

Page 6 of 52



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180709-4 
July 9, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
Council Member Galbraith stated that he did not have a problem replacing a position and assigning 
the duties as required.  However, he did not think it was appropriate to add a position in the middle 
of a budget year and this should be addressed during the 2019 budget process.   
 
Council Member Verhaalen stated that the City is looking at a possible 30¢ increase in the tax rate 
next year and this makes it hard to add another position.  This will be an annual cost that will need 
to be met each year (approximately $68,000/year).  He asked if temporary employees could be used 
during election time. 
 
City Clerk McHugh stated that a temporary employee would need to be certified in elections and 
will need to use the software, which involves a big learning curve. 
 
In answer to Mayor O'Keefe’s question, City Clerk McHugh said the employee would need to 
handle absentee voting in person and they need to be trained and certified in that election software.  
In order to use the system, a person needs to have a very good understanding of all aspects of 
elections from beginning to end.  
 
Council Member Chivinski is in favor of succession planning.  He trusts the capability of the 
Department Heads to maximize the personnel, which is also a taxpayer’s concern.  He believes the 
City is going above and beyond to do their jobs and supports replacing this employee as soon as 
possible.  He also supports a new person, if and when the budget allows. 
 
Council Member Galbraith suggested hiring two part-time employees, if it is too hard to find a 
diverse individual to handle work in both departments.  The hours could be flexible to help during 
peak times.  
 
Council Member Thome asked if hours could be added to a part-time person to help during tax 
collection and the elections.  She suggested two part-time positions at this time with the ability to 
add hours. 
 
Council Member Chivinski stated that it is difficult to find part-time help where he is employed.  It 
may be beneficial to find someone to prepare for future growth.   
 
Council Member Burkart added that the City does not have the time to train a temporary employee 
every three months, if there is turnover in the positions. 
 
Council Member Arnett is not in favor of making a long-term decision at this meeting.  He 
suggested that the Personnel Committee discuss succession planning with more data.   
 
Mayor O'Keefe asked if hiring part-time employees would be a way to address succession planning.   
 
Council Member Burkart suggested filling the position vacated by Jenny Valenta and then discuss 
adding another employee during the budget process. 
 
Council Member Thome was in favor of hiring two part-time employees which would provide help 
in the two individual departments without affecting the current budget. 
 

Page 7 of 52



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180709-5 
July 9, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
In answer to Council Member Galbraith’s question, City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes stated that 
if one FTE for two employees was authorized this evening, she would have the discretion to split 
the jobs as needed.  Two different employees would be dedicated to specific duties. 
 
City Clerk McHugh expressed concern for finding part-time employees.  The difficulty involves the 
realization by the part-time employee of the lack of benefits that other employees are getting.  It is 
difficult to get a decent pool of applicants. 
 
Council Member Galbraith suggested raising the hourly wage, in lieu of benefits, within the current 
budget to make the job more attractive. 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes stated she was willing to hire part-time employees under the 
suggested parameters offered tonight. 
 
Council Member Chivinski asked that when hiring a part-time person, that the Department Head be 
mindful of future openings and growth for this person. 
 
Council Member von Bargen is in favor of hiring the needed people; however, he would like to 
work towards a budgetary plan.  He would approve hiring employees to fill one FTE. 
 
Council Member Arnett said that the Personnel Committee has good experience and he was in favor 
of letting any increase in employees go through the process. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Galbraith, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve the 
replacement of one FTE position to be determined by City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes and City 
Clerk McHugh to replace the position that is being vacated within the current budget.  Motion 
carried without a negative vote.  
 
CONSIDER PAYMENT OF BILLS DATED 7/2/18, TRANSFERS FOR THE PERIOD 
6/23/18 THROUGH 6/28/18; AND ACTION THEREON  
 
Council Member Verhaalen asked for clarification on three invoices.   
 
Motion made by Council Member von Bargen, seconded by Council Member Burkart, to approve 
payment of the bills dated 7/2/18 and transfers for the period 6/23/18 through 6/28/18.  Motion 
carried without a negative vote.  
 
CONSIDER LICENSE APPLICATIONS; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Galbraith, to approve new 
Operator License applications for the period ending June 30, 2019 for Andrew G. Henning, Debra 
M. Newell, David A. Nichols, and Sybille Schnappup.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member von Bargen, to approve 
renewal Operator License applications for the period ending June 30, 2019 for Emily E. Eineichner, 
Blake D. Klug, and John C. Wallus.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
 

Page 8 of 52



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180709-6 
July 9, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes stated that the Go365 program that was discussed at the 
Personnel Committee will be brought to the next Council meeting, after she receives clarification 
from the consultant.  
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes is working with the Synergy Company on the City’s telephone 
and data services, which my produce a possible savings of $1,900 per month.  
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS – None 
 
COMMENTS & ANNOUNCEMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
Council Member Arnett participated in an interview with Channel 58 on the Community piano 
located outside the gym.  The segment will air on Sunday, July 15 at 7:00 a.m. 
 
Council Member Arnett thanked City staff for cleaning up so well after the Fourth of July parade. 
 
In answer to Council Member Arnett’s question, Director Hilvo stated that the City ash trees are 
being heavily attacked right now.  The treatments are continuing and have been successful for the 
bigger trees.  Director Hilvo stated that there are approximately 1,400 ash trees in the City.  It can 
cost $750 - $1,000 to remove one tree.  It is important to remain on the current course to save as 
many trees as possible.  Council Member Arnett stated that the treatments are a large expense and 
he asked that the process be re-evaluated occasionally.  Mayor O’Keefe asked that an update on the 
Emerald Ash Borer and treatment be provided on a future agenda. 
 
Council Member Thome stated that the activities on July 3 and 4 was an amazing display of 
community participation.  She thanked the Rotary, many volunteers and staff, along with a special 
acknowledgement to the Chamber of Commerce for a wonderful parade and community activities 
on July 4.      
 
MAYOR’S REPORT - None  
 
ADJOURNMENT – CLOSED SESSION 
 
Motion made by Council Member Verhaalen, seconded by Council Member Burkart, to adjourn to 
closed session at 7:54 p.m. pursuant to State Statutes 19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the 
purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public 
business whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session, more specifically, to 
consider cellular tower leases for location on the monopole constructed on Western Avenue and to 
consider a six month extension on an option to purchase a City-owned property at N144 W5888 
Pioneer Road and State Statutes 19/85 (1)(g) to confer with legal counsel who is rendering oral or 
written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the Council with respect to litigation in which it 
is or is likely to become involved, more specifically to discuss the Notice of Claim and Injury 
received from Friends of Historic Cedarburg relating to creation of TID No. 5.  Approval of June 
25, 2018 closed session minutes.  Motion carried on a roll call vote with Council Members von 
Bargen, Arnett, Burkart, Verhaalen, Chivinski, Thome, and Galbraith voting in favor.   
 

Page 9 of 52



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180709-7 
July 9, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 
Motion made by Council Member Verhaalen, seconded by Council Member Thome, to reconvene 
to open session at 8:42 p.m.  Motion carried on a roll call vote with Council Members von Bargen, 
Arnett, Burkart, Verhaalen, Chivinski, Thome, and Galbraith voting in favor. 
 
CONSIDER CELLULAR TOWER LEASES FOR LOCATION ON THE MONOPOLE 
CONSTUCTED ON WESTERN AVENUE; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
No action taken. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Chivinski, to adjourn the 
meeting at 8:43 p.m.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
              
      Amy D. Kletzien, MMC/WCPC 
      Deputy City Clerk 

Page 10 of 52



 
 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE: July 30, 2018                                                                        ITEM NO: 8. A. 
 
TITLE:  Consider Ordinance No. 2018-10 rezoning a .182 acre parcel and a .337 acre parcel located 

along the north side of Mill Street between Washington Avenue and Hanover Avenue from B-3/HPD 

Central Business District/Historic Preservation District to B-3/HPD/PUD Central Business 

District/Planned Unit Development District; and action thereon (Plan Comm. 07/02/18) 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY: The reason the applicant needs the Planned Unit Development Overlay District 

(PUD) is the flexibility it provides in administering the basic use zoning district regulations and the 

need for this Council to consider certain code modifications to make these plans work. More 

specifically, due to the shape and limited depth of this property, the applicant finds it necessary to 

request adjustments to the parking stall size, parking offset/setback and vision triangle. Staff reminds 

Council Members that the PUD District was amended a few years ago to provide this flexibility by 

releasing the handcuffs of the base district regulations to allow the Council to work with developers 

for unified development that better reflects the character of Cedarburg.  

 

Council Members are advised that these plans are in support of TID #3 approved back in 2014 

which included a cash grant Developer’s Agreement requiring the developer to create a total real 

estate increment with an equalized value of $950,000.00 to be realized no later than January 1, 

2020. The plans before you will serve as the first step in the approval process for the applicant to 

honor his value-added commitment. This project will consist of three buildings; one facing 

Washington Avenue, another facing Hanover Avenue, and the third facing Mill Street, for a total 

commercial space of 6,900 square feet.  

 

The applicant proposes to support this project with 25 onsite parking stalls and 34 street stalls that 

are located within 250 feet of the entrance to these buildings. According to Section 13-1-82(h)(1) 

and (g) one parking space is required per one hundred fifty (150) square feet of gross floor 

area plus one per employee. This results in a parking requirement of 59 stalls for the project. 

Section 13-1-83 (b)(3) states that available nearby on-street parking may be counted toward 

visitor parking needs. This may only be allowed when on-street parking is permitted in a 

specific location, and then only when such on-street parking spaces are within two hundred 

fifty (250) feet of the entrance they are intended to serve. Accordingly, by using the existing street 

stalls available to these proposed buildings couple with the number of proposed onsite stalls, this 

project is technically Code-compliant as regards parking. While the Plan Commission had a lengthy 

discussion about parking, they believed that the peak demand for parking for the various uses in the 

area differs from one to the other and therefore they felt that there is sufficient street parking in the 

area to support the existing businesses in addition to the needs of this project. 

 

Nonconformity to Standards: 

Due to the size and depth of the existing parcel applicant is unable to design a layout that conforms 

to the basic district regulations. Accordingly, as part of the PUD request, the applicant is seeking 

your approval to adjust the following standards of the underlying B--3 basic use District: 

1. Code Requirement – Sec. 13-1-80 Traffic Visibility States: No obstructions, such as 

structures, parking, or vegetation shall be permitted in any district between the heights 

of two and one-half feet and ten feet above the plane through the mean curb grade Page 11 of 52



within the triangular space formed by any two existing or proposed intersecting street 

or alley right-of-way lines  and a line joining points on such lines located a minimum of 

fifteen feet from their intersection. In the case of arterial streets intersecting with other 

arterial streets or railways, the corner cutoff distance establishing the triangular vision 

clearance space shall be increased to fifty feet. 

Nonconformity – The SW corner of the Hanover Avenue building encroaches on this 

clearance triangle by 3 feet and the SE corner of the Washington Avenue building encroaches 

on the triangle by 6 feet. Two sets of tables and chairs also encroach at this location. 

2. Code Requirement – Sec. 13-1-82(f) (3) Parking Requirements (Landscaping) States: A 

perimeter greenbelt of at least five (5) feet in width shall be installed along the street 

frontage and along all interior lot lines. 

Nonconformity – Parking is proposed up to the Mill Street right-of-way line and ranges 

between 3.2 feet and .6 feet along the north property line. 

3. Code Requirement – Sec.13-1-82 (c) Parking Stall Size States: Each parking space shall 

not be less than one hundred and eighty square feet, exclusive of the space required 

for ingress and egress. 

Nonconformity – The five parking stalls on either side of the dumpsters and directly behind 

the Mill Street building measure 150 square feet. 

 

Landmarks Commission Recommendation: 

Because the building facing Washington Avenue is located in the Historic Preservation District (HPD) 

the applicant was before the Landmarks Commission for a recommendation on the issuance of the 

Certificate of Appropriateness for this building only. At their June 14, 2018 meeting, the Commission 

did recommend issuance a conditional Certificate of Appropriateness for the building footprint, 

location and mass but asked that the architectural/design be changed so that it looks less like a 

replica of an old building in the downtown district. They advised that the Secretary of the Interior 

Standards indicated that new buildings in an historic district shall be differentiated from the old.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

For these plans to be approved as shown, Council Members will to approve the adjustments to the 

standards of the underlying B-3 District as discussed above. Also, recognize that 34 of the 59 

parking stalls required for this development will be offsite. Department staff has listed the following 

comments for your consideration:   

 The Fire Department needs assurance that the parking lot turning radius is adequate for their 

equipment.  

 Fire protection needs will be determined as the project progresses. 

 Parking is a concern with high traffic generating uses such as restaurants. 

 Impact fees will be applied. 

 The basements must be designed for high groundwater and potential petroleum 

contamination.  

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  

At their July 2, 2018 meeting, the Plan Commission recommended approval of this project by 

unanimous vote. In addition, on June 14
th

, the Landmarks Commission recommended Certification 

of Appropriateness for the Washington Avenue building with the condition that the Architectural 

plans are to be modified to make it look less like a replica of an old building. 
Page 12 of 52



 
BUDGETARY IMPACT:   
The TID Developer Agreement requires the petitioner to create improvements with the minimum 

assessed value of $950,000 no later than January 1, 2020. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Unapproved minutes from the July 2, 2018 Plan Commission meeting 

 Minutes for the June 14, 2018 Landmarks Commission meeting. 

 Site and Architectural Plans 

 
INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Cornerstone Builders, LLC. Greg Zimmershied, Owner 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 
 

 

Page 13 of 52



ORDINANCE NO. 2018-10 

 

An Ordinance Rezoning a 0.182 Acre Parcel 

And a 0.337 Acre Parcel Located Along the  

North Side of Mill Street Between  

Washington Avenue and Hanover Avenue 

 

The proposed ordinance having been submitted to the City Plan Commission for recommendation and notice 

having been given pursuant to Wis. Statute, the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, does 

hereby ordain as follows: 

 

 The following described real estate situated in the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, presently being  

in the B-3/HPD Central Business District/Historic Preservation District is hereby rezoned to the 

B-3/HPD/PUD Central Business District/Historic Preservation District/Planned Unit Development 

District: 

 

Parcel 1: 

All that part of Lot 2, Block 6 of the Original Plat of the City of Cedarburg, being part of the Southeast 

1/4 of Section 27, Township 10 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Cedarburg, Ozaukee County, 

Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Southeast corner of said southeast 1/4 Section; thence South 89° 54' 

00" West along the South line of said 1/4 Section, 576.39 feet to a point in the Southerly 

extension of the West right of way line of Washington Avenue; thence North 14º 56' 00" 

West along said West right of way line, 478.54 feet to the intersection of said West right 

of way line and the North right of way line of Mill Street, said intersection being the 

point of beginning of lands to be described; thence South 75º 04' 00" West along said 

North right of way line, 123.75 feet to a point ln the West line of the Original Plat of the 

City of Cedarburg; thence North 14° 56' 00" West along said West line of the Original 

Plat of the City of Cedarburg, 60.81 feet to a point in the South line of the property 

described in Volume 602, Page 238, recorded as Document No. 395988 at the Ozaukee 

County Register of Deeds; thence North 75° 34' 34" East along the South line of said 

property, 123. 75 feet to a point ln the West right of way line of the aforementioned 

Washington Avenue; thence South 14° 56' 00" East along said West right of way line, 

59.71 feet to the point of beginning. 

 

Tax Key Number: 13-107-06-02-000 

Said parcel contains 0.182 acre, more or less 

 

Parcel 2: 

All that part of Lot 10, Block 9 of the Assessor's Plat of the City of Cedarburg, being part of the 

Southeast 1/4 of Section 27, Township 10 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Cedarburg, Ozaukee 

County, Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Southeast 1/4 Section; thence South 89° 54' 

00" West along the South line of said 1/4 Section, 576.39 feet to a point in the Southerly 

extension of the West right of way line of Washington Avenue; thence North 14° 56' 00" 

West along said West right of way line, 478.54 feet to the intersection of said West right 

of way line and the North right of way line of Mill Street; thence South 75° 04' 00" West 

along said North right of way line, 123.75 feet to a point in the West line of the Original 

Plat of the City of Cedarburg and the point of beginning of lands to be described; thence 

continuing South 75º 04' 00" West along said North right of way line, 242.69 feet to the 
Page 14 of 52



intersection of said North right of way line and the East right of way line of Hanover 

Street; thence North 17º 14' 21" West along said East right of way line, 63.04 feet to the 

Southwesterly corner of the property described in Volume 905, Pages 378-379, recorded 

as Document No. 520140 at the Ozaukee County Register of Deeds; thence North 75º 34' 

34" East along the South line of said property and the South line of property described in 

Volume 602, Page 238, recorded as Document No. 395988 at the Ozaukee County 

Register of Deeds, 245.24 feet to a point in the West line of the aforementioned Original 

Plat; thence South 14º 56' 00" East along the West line of said Original Plat, 60.81 feet to 

the point of beginning. 

 

Tax Key Number: 13-050-09-10-000 

Said parcel contains .337 acre, more or less 

 

This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication as provided by law. 

 

Passed and adopted this 30
th

 day of July 2018. 

 

      ________________________________ 

      Michael J. O’Keefe, Mayor 

 

Countersigned: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney 

Page 15 of 52



Page 16 of 52



Page 17 of 52



Page 18 of 52



Page 19 of 52



Page 20 of 52



Page 21 of 52



Page 22 of 52



Page 23 of 52



Page 24 of 52



Page 25 of 52



 LANDMARKS COMMISSION LAN20180614-1 
 June 14, 2018 UNAPPROVED 
 
A regular meeting of the Landmarks Commission, City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, was held 
Thursday, June 14, 2018 at Cedarburg City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, lower level, 
room 2.  
 
The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Judy Jepson at 7:02 p.m. 
 
Roll Call:        Present – Judy Jepson, Tomi Fay Forbes, Tom Kubala, Robert Ross, 

Council Member Kristin Burkart 
   

Excused – James Pape, James Temmer, Doug Yip (alt.) 
 

                        Also Present –  City Planner Jon Censky 
 
STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Chairperson Jepson acknowledged that the agenda for this meeting was posted and distributed in 
compliance with the Wisconsin Open Meetings Law.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Tomi Fay Forbes, seconded by Bob Ross, to approve the minutes of the May 
24, 2018 meeting.  Motion carried without a negative vote with James Pape, James Temmer and 
Doug Yip excused.  
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS – None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Consider Request for a Certificate of Appropriateness for Proposed New Building at the 
Northwest Corner of Washington Avenue and Mill Street at W62 N535 Washington 
Avenue – Cedarburg Land & Cattle LLC/Greg Zimmerschied; and Action Thereon. 
Architect Don Stauss and property owner Greg Zimmerschied presented the plan.  There are 
three proposed buildings.  One is in the historic district, so it needs to be reviewed by the 
Landmarks Commission.  The other two are not in the historic district.  A PUD is needed to get 
the plan moving through the Plan Commission.  The presented building is intended for 
commercial/restaurant applications.  The building is designed to look appropriate historically for 
Cedarburg.  Features include a flat roof that slopes gently west, two stories with retractable 
awnings over the second story windows, black-trimmed windows, an exterior deck on the south 
side, opportunity for seating on the south side of the building along Mill Street, and a façade 
facing Washington Avenue featuring an alcove entrance and deep cornice with brackets.  
 
Tom Kubala pointed out that, though the proposed building has a good sense of proportion, it 
looks like there is an attempt to recreate an original building.  The Secretary of the Interior 

Page 26 of 52



LANDMARKS COMMISSION LAN20180614-2 
June 14, 2018 UNAPPROVED 
 

 

 

guidelines state:  “New construction should also be distinct from the old and must not attempt to 
replicate historic buildings elsewhere on site and to avoid creating a false sense of historic 
development.”  Greg Zimmerschied stated that he recognizes that Cedarburg has a strong 
personality, he wants the building to feel like a continuation of the town.  His building should 
neither detract from the downtown, or blend in so much it disappears in the streetscape.  
 
Planner Censky proposed the Commission accept the concept of a building at that location, so 
Greg Zimmerschied can continue forward with approvals, and that he and Don Stauss return with 
proposed changes to make the building look less like a replica of an old building. 
  
Motion made by Tom Kubala for a conditional Certificate of Appropriateness for the footprint of 
a building on this location with approximately the same mass, two stories high, and intended for 
use as a commercial space.  Bob Ross seconded the motion.  Motion carried without a negative 
vote with James Pape, James Temmer, and Doug Yip excused. 
 
Consider Paint Color for Chris Smith’s Multi-Tenant Building Located at W62 N671 
Washington Avenue; and Action Thereon.  
Chris Smith has already painted the yam color on the building.  Planner Censky stated Chris 
Smith would paint over it if the Commission did not approve.  Bob Ross expressed displeasure 
that Chris Smith went ahead and painted it without Landmarks Commission approval. 
  
Tom Kubala made a motion to accept the yam color paint where Chris Smith has applied it.  Bob 
Ross seconded the motion.  Motion carried without a negative vote with James Pape, James 
Temmer, and Doug Yip excused. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Tom Kubala, seconded by Bob Ross, to adjourn the meeting at 7:50 p.m. 
Motion carried without a negative vote with James Pape, James Temmer, and Doug Yip excused. 
 

Tomi Fay Forbes 
Secretary 
 

adk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27 of 52



Page 28 of 52



Page 29 of 52



Page 30 of 52



Page 31 of 52



 
 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE: July 30, 2018                                                         ITEM NO: 9. A. 
 
TITLE: Consider referral of proposed annexation of an approximately one acre parcel of land at 
7404 Western Avenue in the Town of Cedarburg to the Plan Commission; and action thereon 
 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  Property owner Sara Dunstone has submitted a petition for direct annexation of 

her property into the City of Cedarburg from the Town. In accordance with State Law, this petition 

should be referred to the Plan Commission for their review and recommendation. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Refer to Plan Commission 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: n/a 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  n/a 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Annexation Petition 
 Annexation Map 

 
 
INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Sara Dunstone. Owner 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 
 

 

Page 32 of 52



Page 33 of 52



Page 34 of 52



Page 35 of 52



Page 36 of 52



Page 37 of 52



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 30, 2018                                                                        ITEM NO:  9. B. 

 

 

 

TITLE: Consider Resolution No. 2018-20 requesting a speed limit reduction on Sheboygan Road South of 

Highway 60; and action thereon. 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY: The present speed limit on the County portion of Sheboygan Road south of Highway 60 

is 55 miles per hour. As new development has occurred along that stretch of Sheboygan Road, a number of 

residents have requested that the speed limit be lowered. 

 

The present speed limit on Sheboygan Road from Fairfield Manor Subdivision south is 25 miles per hour, and 

the 30 mile per hour drop is excessive and creates enforcement issues. 

 
 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: N/A 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: None 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Copy of Resolution 2018-20 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  

  

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza-Director of Engineering and Public Works 

 

                                                                262-375-7610 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 38 of 52



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-20 

 

A Resolution Requesting a Speed Limit Reduction 

on Sheboygan Road South of Highway 60 
  

WHEREAS, Sheboygan Road from the north line of Fairfield Manor Subdivision to State 

Highway 60 is under the jurisdiction of Ozaukee County; and 

 

WHEREAS, the current speed limit on this segment of Sheboygan Road is 55 miles per hour; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the current posted speed limit on Sheboygan Road within the City of Cedarburg 

limits from Fairfield Manor Subdivision south is 25 miles per hour; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedarburg is experiencing significant residential growth along the east 

side of Sheboygan Road, including The Glen at Cedar Creek Subdivision and the recently 

approved Cedar Place Apartment complex; and 

 

WHEREAS, continued growth and development is expected along the Sheboygan Road 

corridor; and 

 

WHEREAS, the new developments include public sidewalk within the road right-of-way which 

places pedestrians and bicyclists closer to the vehicular traffic; and  

 

WHEREAS, observed vehicular speeds vary widely creating an unsafe condition; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Cedarburg Common Council that 

the City of Cedarburg hereby requests that Ozaukee County reduce the speed limit on Sheboygan 

Road (County Highway I) south of State Highway 60 to 35 miles per hour.  

 

Passed and adopted by the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg this 30
th

 day of July, 2018. 

 

 

       ___________________________ 

       Michael J. O’Keefe, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

____________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

       

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney 

Page 39 of 52



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 30, 2018                                                                                  ITEM NO:  9. C. 

                           

 

TITLE:   Update on the City’s Emerald Ash Borer (EAB) program; and direction thereon 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  Since 2008 the City of Cedarburg has been treating majority of its ash tree population.  

Increased annual funding for forestry operations for treatment was approved in the amount of $75,000 in 2008.  

We currently budget $65,000 per year.  It is still our recommendation to continue with our treatment and 

removal program that we have in place in order to save as many ash trees as we can.  (More information 

attached).    

 

Without adding additional staff and the increase in tree removals we would like the council to consider looking 

at purchasing a grapple truck in 2019 or 2020. 

 

Link to additional information:   

 

https://www.altec.com/knuckleboom-grapple-saw/ 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  None 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  $65,000 annually 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

            EAB Pictures 

            Cedarburg Ash Tree Information 

            EAB Management Statement – Coalition for Urban Ash Tree Conservation 

             

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  Mikko Hilvo, Director of Parks, Recreation, & Forestry 

                                                                  
 

 

Page 40 of 52

https://www.altec.com/knuckleboom-grapple-saw/


CEDARBURG ASH TREE INFORMATION 

 

Number of Ash Currently (2018) Marked for Removal: 67 

Of which, 34 were Not Treated 

33 were treated with Soil Injection Only 

*Not every ash marked for removal represents a failure of our treatment program. Early on in the 

program Kevin evaluated all of the ash street trees and we chose NOT to treat a good number of 

trees because they were in poor condition, poor growing space, under wires, etc. Now those trees 

are starting to die. 

Number of Treated Ash Removals From EAB In Recent Years 

2016 – 20, Average Trunk Diameter (DBH) 12” 

2017 – 30 Avg. DBH = 11” 

2018 – 33 Avg. DBH = 10” 

*We are losing trees from a size class that were treated with Soil Injection Only due to lack of 

funding. The plan was to do Soil Only ($1.27/inch) on trees under 12 inches DBH and do both 

Soil & Trunk Injection ($2.89/inch) on trees greater than 12 inches. The larger trees which were 

on the more expensive but ideal program are doing well. 2017 was the first year the trees under 

12” were trunk injected. Increased funding was not approved to treat the smaller trees with trunk 

injection sooner. 

*In 2016 a two year Trunk Injection insecticide called Boxer became available to us, so our new 

program is all trees, regardless of diameter class receive Trunk Injection one year and Soil 

Injection the following year. This is important because the Soil treatment includes fertilizer and 

root growth stimulant to compliment the trunk injection and help the trees recover from feeding 

damage. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41 of 52



 

2018 Treatment Program  

Soil Injection: 502 trees, 5,772 diameter inches. (Trees less than 15” DBH.) 

Trunk Injection: 751 trees (Street 687, Parks 64), 15,866 diameter inches.  (Trees greater than 

15” DBH.) 

Total Cost in 2018 $52,284 

Total Number of Treated Ash in 2018 = 1,253 

Total Diameter Inches = 21,638 

Contracted Cost to Remove a tree and stump = $45/diam. Inch. This is based on actual 

departmental costs in 2017. 

Cost to Remove all 1,253 trees if program terminated = $973,710 

Cost to Replant 1,253 trees = $313,250 

Total Cost of Removal & Replacement = $1,286,960 THIS EQUALS 24 YEARS OF 

TREATMENT. 

WILL WE HAVE TO TREAT FOREVER? Answer: NO.  

*After the invasion wave has passed, the number of insects in our area will drop significantly 

due to lack of food (i.e. living ash trees). After the invasion wave we will be able to back off 

treatment and treat less frequently, while monitoring for re-infestation. 

CEDARBURG IS AT THE PEAK OF INFESTATION RIGHT NOW. Within a year or two 

the insect population will crash. 

Cedar Point Subdivision: 

Cedar Point has 843 street trees, 301 of which are ash. That is 36% of the population. Current 

species diversity goals call for no more than 10% of any Genus comprise your street tree 

population. In Wisconsin, most communities have around 20% ash. Cedar Point has 36%. 

In addition, the ash in Cedar Point have an average DBH of 10 inches. The same size class that 

we have lost so many of due to Soil Injection only. This is the reason we are seeing a high 

number of dead ash in that subdivision.  

 

 

 

Page 42 of 52



CEDARBURG ASH TREES 

         

TREE STRESS BY NEW SIDEWALK                DEAD ASH NORTH OF THE CITY 

   

DEAD ASH WEST OF THE CITY   DEAD ASH NEXT TO HEALTHY ASH 

 

Page 43 of 52



   

DEAD ASH NEXT TO HEALTHY ASH  HEALTHY ASH ON WASHINGTON 

Page 44 of 52



Untreated ash trees after EAB peak, Belvedere Dr., Toledo, OH, June 2009.

Coalition for Urban Ash Tree Conservation
- Emerald Ash Borer Management Statement -

www.emeraldashborer.info/files/conserve_ash.pdf

signed 06 Jan 2011

We the undersigned strongly endorse ash tree conservation as a fundamental component of integrated programs to
manage emerald ash borer (EAB) in residential and municipal landscapes.  Cost-effective, environmentally sound EAB
treatment protocols are now available that can preserve ash trees through peak EAB outbreaks with healthy canopy
intact.  Used in association with tree inventories and strategic removal / replacement of unhealthy ash, tree conservation
will help retain maximum integrity and value of urban forests.  This integrated approach to urban EAB management is
supported by university scientists with expertise in EAB management, commercial arborists, municipal foresters, public
works officials, and non-governmental organizations (NGOs).

Emerald ash borer has killed millions of ash trees since its
discovery in 2002 and the number of dead ash is increasing
rapidly.  Ash species are abundant in planted and natural
areas of urban forests, representing 10 - 40% of the canopy
cover in many communities.

Ash trees provide substantial economic and ecosystem
benefits to taxpayers, ranging from increased property
value, to storm water mitigation, to decreased energy
demands (http://www.coloradotrees.org/benefits.htm).

Consequently, widespread ash mortality in urban forests
and residential landscapes is having devastating economic
and environmental impacts.  Indeed, EAB is predicted to
cause an unprecedented $10-20 billion in losses to urban
forests over the next 10 years.
(http://ncrs.fs.fed.us/pubs/jrnl/2010/nrs_2010_kovacs_001.pdf)

After its initial discovery, regulatory agencies attempted to
eradicate EAB through removal and destruction of all ash
trees in infested areas.  Unfortunately, this proved
unsuccessful and was soon abandoned.

Since then, university scientists have developed and
refined treatment protocols that can protect healthy ash
trees from EAB and help conserve the urban forest.

However, despite availability of cost-effective treatments,
many municipalities, property managers, and homeowners
continue to rationalize tree removal as the only viable
management strategy for EAB.  This is based on erroneous
beliefs that tree removal slows the spread of EAB, or that
treatment is not effective, economical, or environmentally
sound.  Current science supports conservation via treatment as
a sensible and effective tool for managing healthy ash trees in
urban settings.  In many cases, tree conservation is
economically and environmentally superior to tree removal.

Based on research conducted by university scientists, and
careful review of the potential impacts on human health
and the environment, the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) has registered three systemic insecticides
for control of EAB – dinotefuran is registered for basal
trunk bark or soil application, emamectin benzoate for
trunk injection only, and imidacloprid for soil application
or trunk injection.

When applied using formulations, products, and protocols
documented as effective by university research, these
treatments can provide environmentally sound control of
EAB, sufficient to maintain a functional and aesthetically
pleasing ash canopy.

Ash trees before EAB devastation -- Belvedere Dr., Toledo, OH, June 2006.Page 45 of 52



Coalition for Urban Ash Tree Conservation EAB Management Statement Signed -- 06 Jan 2011

Treatment is most appropriate after EAB infestation has
been detected within 15 miles, and is most effective when
applied before trees are infested.  However, treatment can
also save ash trees with a low level of EAB infestation. 
Spring is the ideal time for treatment, but soil application
in fall can be effective in some situations.

Different treatment regimens will be optimal under
different situations -- no one treatment plan or application
method is best under all circumstances.

A program of sustained treatment will be needed to
conserve trees through peak EAB infestation.  However, as
the local EAB population declines due to death of
untreated ash, it is possible that treatment frequency may
be reduced.  Research on this question and other aspects
of EAB management is ongoing, requiring practitioners to
stay current.

Up-to-date information about EAB insecticides,
application protocols, and effectiveness can be found at:

http://www.emeraldashborer.info/files/multistate_EAB_Insecticide_Fact_Sheet.pdf

É     É     É
In summary, urban ash conservation can be less costly than removal, especially when the significant
environmental and economic benefits of established trees are considered (www.treebenefits.com,
http://extension.entm.purdue.edu/treecomputer/).  Furthermore, ash conservation can circumvent the
substantial environmental impacts caused by wholesale deforestation of the urban landscape, as well as
the documented public safety risks associated with standing dead ash trees and their removal.

 -- Signed - 06 Jan 2011 --

Jim Bell, Parks Superintendent
City of Elgin, IL

Shawn Bernick, Director of Research *
Rainbow Treecare Scientific Advancements

Joe Boggs, Asst. Prof.
OSU Extension / OSU Dept. of Entomology
The Ohio State University

J. Bradford Bonham, DVM *
Municipal consultant (OH)

Joe Chamberlin, PhD; Development Mgr, SE
Valent U.S.A. Corporation

Richard S. Cowles, PhD
Agricultural Scientist
The Connecticut Agricultural Experiment Station

Mike Galvin, Deputy Director *~
Casey Trees, Washington, DC

Larry Hanks, Consulting Arborist *~
Pampered Properties, Georgetown, KY

Daniel A. Herms, PhD
Prof., Dept. of Entomology
The Ohio State University; Wooster, OH

Ray Iacobucci, Regional Technical Manager
TruGreen; Lewis Center, OH

Dana Irwin, Sr. Director - East Svc. Delivery
Scotts LawnService

Deborah G. McCullough, PhD
Prof., Depts. of Entomology and Forestry
Michigan State University; E. Lansing, MI

Fredric Miller, PhD ^
Prof., Horticulture
Joliet Junior College; Joliet, IL

Michael J. Raupp, PhD
Prof. & Ext. Specialist, Dept. of Entomology
University of Maryland; College Park, MD

Michael Robinson, VP; Mgr. Midwest Div. *
The F. A. Bartlett Tree Expert Company

Clifford S. Sadof, PhD
Prof., Entomology
Purdue University; West Lafayette, IN

Craig Schaar, Forestry Inspector *
City of Toledo, OH

David Smitley, PhD
Prof., Dept. of Entomology
Michigan State University; E. Lansing, MI

Chad Tinkel, Manager, Forestry Operations *
City of Ft. Wayne, IN

Chris Williamson, PhD
Assoc. Prof., Dept. of Entomology
University of Wisconsin; Madison, WI

James Zwack, Dir. Technical Services
The Davey Tree Expert Company

*ISA-certified arborist
^ISA Board-Certified Master Arborist

~ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist

Standing dead ash, Belvedere Dr., Toledo, OH. Curbside ash removed due to EAB, Belvedere Dr. Ash trees under treatment, Lake Forest, IL, 2010.

Page 46 of 52



Page 47 of 52



Page 48 of 52



Page 49 of 52



Page 50 of 52



Page 51 of 52



Page 52 of 52


	CC Agenda 07-30-18
	CC Minutes 07-09-18
	Blue Sheet - Mill Street Rezoning
	Ord 2018-10 - Mill Street Rezoning
	Mill Street Site Plan
	Landmarks Min 06-14-18
	PC Minutes 07-02-18
	Blue Sheet - Annexation Referral
	Annexation Information
	Blue Sheet - Sheboygan Rd Speed Limit
	Res 2018-20 - Sheboygan Rd Speed Limit
	Blue Sheet - EAB Update
	EAB Information
	CEDARBURG ASH TREE INFORMATION
	CEDARBURG ASH TREES
	Conserve_Ash_Mgmt_Statement

	Bills
	CA Report 07-26-18
	Proclamation - Mr Miller Day



